
. L . . . . . . . b' '

.. . ! . 
' 
. . . ' . ' 

. 
' , . ( . . ..' . , ,

' 
' ' 

' 9 crimlnql complaint . 'A() 91 (Rev.. ()8. 0 )

L ) t . . z ' .. ,: , . , . e

NITED ,STATC.'S lsrRlcT OIJRT
j : . r ;, .

. 
. . jbr the ' . ' .

. . '

E Southem bisitid qf Flptida ' . '
. . ' 

. .' .

Uniiçd States df America ). . , r
, - ) ' .'%. . . .

, 
. . ) cajexu, /- y /7J- #p , . , , ,l . .I . - . ' ' - ' 

'

Franklin BeckWith apd ).I 
John:sha Tfakis' ) ,ë

. . 
'

y 
' 

. . 
.' : z . 

'1 . ' =-

'

- .- . , 
. 

' 

- 

' 
. ) . . ' '

j ' . ,Dqt-endanîlp . 
' 

. .

CRIMINAL cowlltl-wlxTsv TEL,EPIIONE ORO:HERREEIABLE ELEc:TRoNIc MEA, Ns '

j . ' . . . .
1 ' 1, tlw cpmplailjant insflli. câslw jtatq that the follovilgtis thle t. o. thc best éf tny. ktïmkl,çdge and Ebelie/ '
I . ' ' G ' ' . '' )'. . . . 

. 
' 

.' 
. 

' ' :
.l . . . 

' ; ; ' J t ' . '

I : 0n or gboùtthé datets) of M##-28, 292-07 r ,d-.at;j.6..>er 29, /02b i1) the,toùljtiès qf broWard'and Miarf/bade '' l1ï tlw .
11: .

' 

.

' 

.

' 

-- .

' 

.

' 

.

' 

.. ::

' 

.

' 

.

'

.

' 

.. 

,.. .

' 

.

'

1, . . touthem Distiict 6î F!qf
.t4à-- -.. 

.
-  , the defélïdxàlttts) vihlated: '

j '' 

lïodç l5'cc//vp . t?#. b?-?c Descr+tiçhl .l ' . ,

i ' ' è it w'ire and bànk fraud ' '
,
) 18 U.s.c. j 1349 o.nspitzcy tb,comm .

18 U.S.C. . j 134: Wir:tfràud' 
' Bknk Fraud' ''. . . 

. . , . .I t.t U.t.c.. â .13k.k.
j ' .
I . . . . ' . '
.p . . 

: .j. . . . y . . . , .
1. ' ' .k

' 

. 
. 

' 
.

I . -. 
-j '. . . y'.q 

'' 
. ' 

. u .j . .. y . . z . . . . . .. . . 

.j' . - '
l - i based on these 'facts: . . 

'
. 'Ihis criminal complmnt s1. ' 
. . - . . .

j . . , . . ' . . , . ,
I SEE AU ACHSD AFFIDAVIT. . ' :
j . '
l ' . - :
j . . . u. ,.
j . . ' . ' L' a .; . . .
y

' 

' 
. 

' 
. .

) ' . . . n G , '
j .'.' . . ' ' ' '
' ' ' # c ntinued.on tlte.ac ttazhzd zheet. . . '. . ' . ' ', , o , .' .. t

' 

' , '
. 

' ' ' - '
' . . . 

' 
..

. .. u . , 
'

. . 
x . . . 'E : . .

. 
. 

, . ' ' ' p : . . . , ' ' . ' .
' 

' ' -. . J- - .-.. . -.--  ' . ' --..---.--==.-, '
' :-à-ç

- c) ,,jj/:'-;r),, ,,,,f :v '-zîtt' k,tz/v,,,,.. 7 . ' -

, caleb uirz.zA.tjots . .' 
: 

'-  ' r

l>? ïlpreil:z7tz/zl': rl?ztf içtle ' -

Attested to bv the Applicant in accordance. u4tla tllé rèquiràrrients of.ped.R.crilu.p 4.l by telephune

.. 
' 

. 
' ' 

' 
' 

' 

:3 23 2- !Date'
g

. ; Jttdgc ..k xwgla/spg ' .

r . . . ' .
. . . . )

City and stàte-. Foft Lauderdale.'. Florida ' uàtriilt M. Hunt, Uhiied States Magîstrate ltïdge
. . . :

. jJ) yyg: g# jjyjyyjg aj)u x/jjy g , . . . 
. .

. . 
' 

. 
' ' '

. - ..- - .- v -----v--.-- .- .-..- ---..--...--...... a................ .-... - 
' .-'.-..,.s..- ou. -. v ..... ........................- .''.....''''..''..'':..1''''''''''.''''''''-'''e'''e'-'''.'''''''''''''''.'':''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''o o- onv- '''''''''''''''*-q7*e . --- *----v- -v* eve-' - -'''G'''''''''''':'''''''''''''' ''''''''' -'''''e';;''''.'''' ''' *'''''''->'' - n * ''* *-''' **'

' 
. q;J';t7?!?p?',!r4;sj5(: . . . . . . q. .; y;: s;:E.:. :f : . s . ;. . . . h . . .. .L.' . ..c. . . . z,. .. .. 7 ....y .z:::sE::ïï à-.ïz.g.,L,sm..: .z .u.E.E. : ':r!!!rr!'k., x. 4SNE ersf c..sE S . ;; %,u ; vsïsL a&.lErt:>zx-. r?hpys:. . ..... EeE. .. ...r?92s.>. ,E3. .@ t :.:èrI;rrr;: .. ;, . . . . .. .k . . .i kA p u .%$$y1!lh71lhr .: ::.E'E, uqt'a'E$': .q:..,' ) : r;$')t 'IQ:E' %f . : . .â.>. r.. ufitk- k'Ax .> . . : . . '' ' . ' .

Case 0:21-mj-06173-PMH   Document 1   Entered on FLSD Docket 03/23/2021   Page 1 of 11



AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF CRIM INAL COM PLM NT

1, Caleb D. King, being duly swom , do state and attest as follows:

AGENT BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION

This Aftsdavit is submitled in support of an application for a Crim inal Complaint

charging JOHNESHA TRAVIS ($çT1lAVIS'') and FRANKLIN BECKWITH (SGBECKWITH'')

with conspiracy to commit wire fraud and bank fraud, wire fraud, and bank fraud, in violation of

Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1349, 1343, and 1344, from on or about M ay 28, 2020,

continuing to and through at least October 29, 2020.

TRAVIS and BECKW ITH participated in a scheme to obtain by fraud teris of

thousands of dollars from a forgivable loan through the Paycheck Protection Prog/am ($TPP'') by

submitting a fraudulent PPP loan application on behalf of the their limited liability company

Luxury Yacht Rentals Plus, LLC tsslwuxury Yachf).

l am a Special Agent with the Coast Guard Investigative Service (ç(CG1S''). Prior

to my employm ent with CGIS, 1 was a Special Agent with the Defense Crim inal lnvestigative

Service C$DC1S'') for 7 years and the United States Anny Criminal lnvestigation Divi.sion

Command (CCUSACIDC'') for 1.5 years. I am a graduate of USACIDC'S Special Agent Course at

Fort Leonard W ood, M issouri, and the DCIS Special Agent Basic Training Program at the Federal

Law Enforcement Training Center.I also obtained a Juris Doctorate degree in 2020.

M y 1aw enforcement auth.brity is derived from Title 14, United States Code, Section

525, which grants CGIS Special Agents 1aw enforcement authority for any crime committed within

the authority of the United States Coast Guard. The United States Coast Guard has very broad

authority to enforce laws related to mari.time commerce, including the investigation of fraudulent

loans taken out by yacht ohartering businesses.

Case 0:21-mj-06173-PMH   Document 1   Entered on FLSD Docket 03/23/2021   Page 2 of 11



5. This Affidavit is based on my personal investigation and on information obtained

from other 1aw enforcem ent personnel and witnesses, docum ents, and public records. Because

this Affidavit is being subm itted for the limited purpose of establishing probable cause, it does not
'
(

contain every detail about this investigation of which 1 am aware.

PROBABLE CAUSE

Overview ofthe Paycheck Protection Program

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security I%CCARES''I Act is a federal

law enacted in or around M arch 2020 and designed to provide emergency financial assistance to

the millions of Americans who are suffering the econom ic effects caused by the COV1D-'19

pandemic. One source of relief provided by the CARES Act was the authorization of up to $349

billion in forgivable Ioans to small businesses forjob retention and certain other expenses, through

a program referred to as the PPP. In or around April 2020, Congress authorized over $300 billion

in additional PPP funding.

In ord. er to obtain a PPP loan, a qualifying business m ust submit a PPP loan

application, which is signed by an apthorized representative of the business. The PPP loan

application requires the business (through its authorized representative) to acknowledge the

program rules and make certain affirmative certifcations in order to be eligible to obtain the PPP

loan. In the PPP loan application, the small business (through its authorized representative) must

state, among other things, its: (a) average monthly payroll expenses; and (b) number of employees.

These fgures are used to calculate the am ount of money the sm all business is eligible to receive

under the PPP. ln addition, businesse; applying for a PPP loan must provide documentation

showing their payroll expenses.

8. A PPP loan application must be processed by a participating lender. lf a PPP loan
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application is approved, the participating lender funds the PPP loan using its own monies, which

are 100% guaranteed by the Small Business Administration (G(SBA''). Data from the application,

inclgding information about the borrower, the total amount of the loan, and the listed number of

employees, is transmitted by the lender to the SBA in the course of processing the loan.

9. The CARES Act specises eligibility criteria that a participating lender must

consider, specifcally,

In evaluating the eligibility of a borrower for a covered loan with
the terms described in this paragraph, a lender shall consider

whether the borrower- was in operation on Februag 15, 2020; and
had employees for whom the borrower paid salarles and payroll
taxes; or pald independent contractors, as reported on a Form 1099-

M ISC.

Title 15, United States Code, Section 636(a)(36)(F)(ii)(11)(aa)-(bb).

10. PPP loan proceeds must be used by the business for certain permissible business

expenses such as payroll costs, interest on mortgages, rent, and utilities. The PPP allows the

interest and principal on the PPP loan to be entirely forgiven if the business spends the loan

proceeds on these expense items within a designated period of time after receiving the proceeds

and uses a certain amount of the PPP loan proceeds on payroll expenses.

The Fraudulent PPP Loan Application

1 1. According to Florida's Division of Corporations website (ç:SunBiz''), Luxury Yacht

was incorporated in 2019 with its principal place of business listed in M iami, Florida. According

)

'

to the incorporation documents, the manager and registered agent of Luxury Yacht was A.K.

l2. A.K.'S home address is Iisted as Luxury Yacht's principal place of business.

13. l interviewed A.K., and A.K. stated that he/she does not know BECKW ITH or

TRAVIS, nor is he/she even aware of the company. l am not aware of any evidence linking A.K.

to TM VIS or BECKW ITH.
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On M ay 28, 2020, per Luxury Yacht's annual report available on SunBiz, TRAVIS

was made the managrr and registered agent of Luxury Yacht. However, A.K.'S hom e address

continues to this day to be listed on SunBiz as Luxury Yacht's principal place of business.

According to bank iecords, on or about June 8, 2020, TRAVIS and BECKW ITH

opened a business checking account (the çdBank Accounf') in the name of Luxury Yacht. The Bank

Account was opened in person at a bank branch in Broward County. TRAVIS listed herself on the

bank opening documents as Luxury Yacht's manager. BECKW ITH listed himself as an authorized

signer on the Bank Account.

16. From on or about June 1 1, 2020, through on and about June 16, 2020, a PPP loan

application was electronically prepared and submitted with supporting documents on behalf of

Luxury Yacht, via interstate wires to a logn processor (ççBank Processor 1''), to a federally insured

bank CçBank 1'') in the amount of $152,,605. The Borrower Application Form was electronically

signed with the name çslohnesha Travis.''

17. The Borrower Application Form pam ed Luxury Yacht as the Applicant, TRAVIS

as the Prim ary Contact and sole owner, and A.K.'S residential address as the business address. Of

note, the GsBusiness Phone'' number listed on the fonn, according to AT&T docum ents, is a cell

phone number registered to BECKW ITH ending in 1913. As further discussed below, I spoke with

BECKW ITH at this number.

18. Ltlxursrvaclptolus@valpoo.com is the email address that was used to submit the PPP

loan application and supporting documents. Yahoo records indicated that the email account was

registered in TRAVIS'S name, but the ph
. 
one number linked to the account is the AT&T cell phone

number registered tq BECKW ITH ending in 1913.
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The Borrower Application Form contained the following m aterially false

information'.

a. That Luxury Yacht's average monthly payroll was $61,402;

That Luxury Yacht had six employees; and,b.

That the purpose of the loan was for payroll and utilities.

20. The Borrower Application Fol'm also contained the following certiGcations, among

others, each of which was initialed with the letters ç(JT'':

a. The Applicant was in operation on February 15, 2020 and

had employees for whom it paid salaries and payroll taxes or paid

independent contractors, as reported on Formts) 1099-M1SC.

b. The funds will be used to retain workers and m aintain
payroll or make mortgages interest payments, lease payments, and
utility payments, as specified under the Paycheck Protection
Program Rule; 1 understand that if the funds are knowingly used for
unauthorized purposes, the federal government may hold me legally

liable, such as for charges of fraud.

J:

c. 1 further certify that the information provided in this
application and the information provided in al1 supporting

documents and forms is true and accurate in a1l material respects. 1
understand that knowingly making a false statement to obtain a

guaranteed loan from SBA is punishable under the law (.1

21. The Luxury Yacht PPP loan application also included the following supporting

documents: (1) a purported 1RS Form 941 (Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return) for the first

quarter of 2020, and (2) a purported February. bank statement from the Bank Account. The bank

statement appears to be fraudulent; it purports to be from February 2020, but the Bank Account

was not opened until June 8, 2020.

22. The purported Form 941 submitted with the loan application showed a Grst quarter

payroll of $183,125.00 for six employees. lmportantly, the Form 94l is unsigned despite the

requirement that it be signed. M oreover, as discussed below, there is no evidence that Luxury
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Yacht has or pays any employees.

23. The Luxury Yacht PPP loan application was approved, and on June 16, 2020, Bank

1 wired to the Bank Account loan proceeds in the amount of $152,605. 1 have reviewed records

from the Bank Account, and it does not appear that any funds obtained from the PPP loan were

used for payroll or utilities.

24. In fact, the bank records retlect a number of debit card purchases and transactions

that do not appear to be related to any authorized purposes, as per the Borrower Application Form.

For example, there are transactions at restaurants such as Prime 1 12, Outback Stealchouse, Yolo

Las Olas, Sushi Siam Brickell, Southport Raw Bar, and Twin Peaks Davie. There are also

transactions at Tryp By Wyndham Fort Lauderdale (a hötel) and the Nature's Remedy Shop.

25. The bank records also retlect approximately $1 14,000 in cash withdrawals by

TRAVIS from June 16, 2020, to October 27, 2020.

26. As of October 30, 2020, there was only about $37,538.07 remaining in the Bank

Account.

TM  VIS's and BECKWITH'S Statements // Law Enforcement

1. Interview oflohnesha Travis

On October 16, 2020, 1 . interviewed TRAVIS at her home in Fort Lauderdale,

Florida. TRAVIS stated that she is the owner of Luxury Yacht. Specitically, TRAVIS explained

that BECKW ITH asked her to be the owner of Luxury Yacht for credit purposes. According to

TRAVIS, the purpose of the company was to charter yachts for third parties. W hen asked, she

stated that Luxury Yacht owned boats and had employees. However, she stated that she was not

in possession of any business records pertaining to Luxury Yacht. After further questioning, she

admitted that Luxury Yacht did not in fact have any boats or employees.

6

Case 0:21-mj-06173-PMH   Document 1   Entered on FLSD Docket 03/23/2021   Page 7 of 11



28. I asked TRAVIS if she applied for a PPP loan on behalf of Luxury Yacht. TRAVIS

stated that she was aware that BECKW ITH applied for a PPP Loan on behalf of the company. She

claimed that she did not take part in preparing or submitting the application. She admitted,

however, to signing the loan applicatiop, which she claimed she did on BECKW ITH'S phone in

the parking 1ot of her apartment building in Broward County.

29. TRAVIS further claimed that BECKW ITH told her that they were going to use the

proceeds of the loan to start a legitimate business. She admitted to knowing that Bank 1 deposited

the loan proceeds into the Bank Account because she received monthly bank account statements

to her email. TRAVIS showed me the bank statem ents on her computer.

J. Interview ofFranklin Beckwith

30. On October 19 and 20, 2020, 1 interviewed BECKW ITH by telephone.

BECKW ITH admitted to me that he waj in fact the owner of Luxury Yacht and that he had asked

TRAVIS to be the (downer'' for credit purposes. BECKW ITH referred to himself as the owner' ,

director, and manager of Luxury Yacht. He further claimed that TRAVIS had no knowledge

regarding Luxury Yacht's employees or operations.

During my conversations with BECKW ITH, 1 asked him about Luxury Yacht's

business purposes. During one conversation, he stated that the company charters yachts that belong

i d him further' about this he responded that the company'sto third parties
. W hen I quest one ,

incorporation documents allow it to partake in all legal business; therefore, according to

BECKW ITH, it can sell cookies or charter boats.

32. During a second conversgtion, 1 asked him again about the purpose of the business.

This time, he claimed that the original purpose of the business was to purchase a boat for charters,

but the company was unable to do that; therefore, in the end, he decided that that the company
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would rent cars. However, when 1 last checked on January 27, 2, 021, there were no cars registered

to Luxury Yacht.

33. I asked BECKW ITH about the number of individuals employed by the company,

and he responded that the company had six employees. W hen asked for the names of these

employees, BECKW ITH did not provide me with a single name. Instead, he told me that he would

email me a list of employees along with other business records. He never did.

BECKW ITH also claimed that he used ADP Payroll Services to pay his Luxury

Yacht employees. However, ADP has indicated that they have no records relating to Luxury

Yacht. ADP did provide payroll records for a second company that BECKW ITH is listed as the

manager of on SunBiz. 1 asked BECKW ITH whether the Luxury Yacht employees were also

employees for this second company, BECKW ITH stated that each company had different

employees.

35. Finally, l checked with the Florida Department of Revenue to see what information,

if any, it had on file about Luxury Yaçht. As of December 23, 2020, the Florida Departm ent of

Revenue had no reemployment assistaace tax reports for Luxury Yacht or wage information for

employees of Luxuq Yacht.

coxcùcslox

36. Based on the information provided above, 1 respectfully submit that probable

cause exists to believe that TRAVIS and BECKW ITH have committed conspiracy to comm it

wire fraud and bank fraud, wire fraud, and bank fraud, in violation of Title 18, United States

Code, Sections 1349, 1343, and 1344,

FURTHER YOUR AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No.

UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

V.

FR ANKLIN BECKW ITH and

JOHNESHA TM VIS,

Defqndants.

/

COM PLAINT COVER SHEET

Did this matter originate from a matter pending in the Northern Region of the United States

Attorney's Office prior to August 9, 2013 (Mag. Judge Alicia 0. Valle)? -  Yes X No

2. Did this matter originate from a màtter pending in the Central Region of the United States

Attorney's Office prior to August 8, 2014 (Mag. Judge Shaniek M. Maynardl'?- Yes X No

3. Did this matter originate from a matter pending in the Central Region of the United States

Attorney's Office prior to August 8, 2019 (Mag. Judge Jared M. Strauss)? -  Yes X No

4. Did this matter originate from a matter pending in the southern region of the United States

Attorney's OfGce prior to November 23, 2020 (Judge Aileen M. Cannon)? -x Yes - No

Respectfully subm itted, .

ARIANA FAJARDO ORSHAN
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

B : 'y

BERTILA LILIA FERN DEZ

Assistant United States Attorney

Fla. Bar No. 124092
99 Northeast 4th Street

M iami, FL. 33132-21 11

Tel: (305) 961-9099
BertilmFernandez@usdoj.gov
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